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November 10,2004 

To: Mayor and City Council 
And the Citizens ofHighland Park 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Highland Park (City) for the fiscal 
year ended April 30, 2004, is hereby submitted. The City's CAFR is presented in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently, 
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information 
pesented in this report. To a reasonable basis for making these representations, the City 
management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect 
the government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the 
preparation of the City's financial statements in accordance with GAAP. Because the cost of internal 
controls should not ouhveigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of internal controls has 
been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be 
free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The City's financial statements have been audited by Sikich Gardner & Co, LLP, a firm of licensed 
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004, are free of material misstatement. 
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent 
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified 
opinion that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004, are fairly presented in 
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the 
financial section of this report. 

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany 
the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This 
letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The 
City's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of the Government 

The City of Highland Park, incorporated in 1869. has a long-standing heritage as one of the prestigious 
communities along Chicagoland's 'horth shore" of Lake Michigan. The City currently occupies a land 
area of 12.25 square miles. located 26 miles north of Chicago, and serves a population of 30.262. The 
City automatically became a home-rule unit of government when the 1970 Illinois Constitution was 
adopted because it had a population in excess of 25,000. As a home-rule entity, The City has no tax rate 



or debt limits, nor is it required to conduct a referendum to authorize the issuance of debt or to increase 
property taxes. 

The City has operated under the council-manager fonn of government since a 1951 referendum. Policy- 
making and legislative authority are vested in a seven-member Council composed of a mayor and six 
council members elected on an at-large basis for four year, staggered terms. The City Council appoints 
the City Manager, Treasurer, City Clerk, and Corporation Counsel. The City Manager is responsible for 
carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of 
the City, and for appointing the heads of the various departments. 

The City provides a full range of services. including police and fire protection; community and economic 
development; construction and maintenance of the City's streets and other infrastructure; water, sewer, 
and parking services; youth and senior services; local transit service; and operation of the Highland Park 
Country Club. The CAFR also includes the activities of the Police and Firefighters' Pension Funds, as 
well as the Highland Park Public Library, although control of these funds rests with independent hoards. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and control. All departments 
of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City's Director of Finance so that a 
budget may be prepared. The City Manager then presents a proposed budget to the City Council for 
review in March. The City Council is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to 
adopt a final budget by no later than April 30, the close of the City's fiscal year. The appropriated budget 
is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., police). The City Manager is 
authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund. Any revisions that alter 
the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council. Budget-to-actual comparisons 
are provided in this report for each individual governmental and proprietary fund for which an 
appropriated annual budget has been adopted. Also provided is a schedule of detailed expenditures 
comparing budget and actual information for the General Fund at the function deparhnent and object 
level. 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered 
from the broader perspective of the economic environment within which the City of Highland Park 
operates. 

Local economy. The City currently enjoys a favorable economic environment and local indicators point 
to continued stability. The economic outlook remains very strong as the City's stable tax base increased 
by 9.0% this past fiscal year. The unemployment rate for the City is currently 3.3%, down from 3.5% in 
2003. This rate compares favorably when compared to the 5.2% rate for Lake County and 6.1% rate for 
the State of Illinois. The total value of building permits in the City for fiscal year 2004 was $127 million. 
nearly double the $69 million recorded in fiscal year 2003. In 2004, 105 residential building permits 
were issued, compared to 72 for the prior year. The per capita income of the City's labor force was 
$55,331 according to the latest census, which placed the City among the nation's wealthiest communities 
with populations of25,000 or more. 

Long-term financial planning. The City continues to plan for its future to preserve the outstanding 
quality of life enjoyed by the residents and to ensure a high level of service to the community. The City 
has taken action to ensure that funding for the existing infrastructure will be increased. Effective January 
1, 2003, an additional one-half percent home-rule sales tax was imposed on the sale of general 
merchandise. This incremental tax is expected to yield approximately $2 million in additional sales tax 
revenue per year. This revenue is pledged to infrastructure improvements and the abatement of the debt 
service property tax levy planned for various projects, including the following: 



Construction has begun on a 55,000 square foot addition to the Highland Park Country 
Club clubhouse. The facility will house an indoor swimming pool, running track. 
basketball courts, fitness center and other amenities to replace the current Karger Center. 
The $1 2.3 million project will be funded primarily by the Park District, but the City will 
serve as the construction contract administrator and contribute up to $2 million towards 
the project. 

The City will soon begin construction of a 50,000 square foot state-of-the-art policing 
facility. Upon completion of the Police Headquarters. the City will have rebuilt or 
renovated all major City facilities. 

The City continues an aggressive capital plan for infrastructure improvements, committing $3.6 million 
per year for street. bridge, sanitary sewer, ravine remediation and storm sewer improvements. An 
additional $I million in water revenues are pledged for capital improvements to the water production and 
distribution systems. 

Cash management policies and practices. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in 
certiticates of deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, repurchase agreements, the Illinois Public 
Treasurer's investment pool, and other securities. The majority of investments reported are in the Police 
and Firefighters' Pension Trust Funds. which earned rates of return of 8.86% and 7.36%, respectively, for 
the current fiscal year. Investment income includes appreciation in the fair value of investments. 
Increases in fair value during the current year, however, do not necessarily represent trends that will 
continue; nor is it always possible to realize such amounts_ especially in the case of temporary changes in 
the fair value of investments that the government intends to hold to maturity. 

Risk management. On May 1,2002, the City became a member of the Intergovernmental Risk 
Management Agency (IRMA), a risk pool comprised of approximately 80 governmental entities 
throughout the Chicagoland area. IRMA'S risk management program is administered in-house by IRMA 
staff, and all member agencies are required to make a strong commitment to effective public risk 
management. All covered losses of IRMA members, including those within the member's deductible, are 
processed by IRMA'S professional, self-administered claims staff. IRMA provides a coverage limit of 
$10_000,000 for all general, auto, and police liability; a $30.000,000 coverage limit on workers' 
compensation; and a $250,000,000 coverage limit on property. The City continues to be self-insured for 
all health care claims. 

Pension and other postemployment benefits. The City sponsors two single-employer defined benefit 
pension plans for its public safety employees - a Police Pension Plan and a Firefighters' Pension Plan. 
Each year, an independent actuary calculates the amount of the annual contribution the City must make to 
the pension plans to ensure that they will be able to fully meet obligations to retired employees on a 
timely basis. As a matter of policy, the City fully funds each year's annual required contribution to the 
pension plan as determined by the actuary. The unfunded liability is being amortized in accordance with 
Illinois Statutes requiring plans to be fully funded by 2033. 

The City also provides pension benefits for its non-public-safety employees through the Illinois 
Municipal Retirement Fund, an agent-multiple-employer plan managed by the State of Illinois. The City 
funds the plan via the required contribution employer rate determined annually by the State. 

The City also provides postretirement heath and dental care benefits for certain retirees and their 
dependents. As of the end of the current fiscal year, there were 126 retired employees receiving these 
benefits, which are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. GAAP do not currently require governments to 
report a liability in the financial statements in connection with an employer's obligation to provide these 
benetits. 



Additional information on the City's pension plans and postemployment benefits can be found in notes to 
the financial statements. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Cit). for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for 
the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003. This was the nineteenth consecutive year that the City has received 
this prest~gious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City published an easily 
readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This repon satisfied GAAP, applicable legal requirements, and 
specific program requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the 
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

In addition, the City also received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its annual 
budget document for the Fiscal Year ending April 30,2005. In order to qualify for the Distinguished 
Budget Presentation Award, the City's budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories, 
including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operatiom guide, and a communications device. 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services 
of the entire staff of the Finance Department, as well as the cooperation of all operating departments of 
the City. Most importantly, the Mayor, City Council and City Manager are recognized for their 
leadership and interest in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible 
and prudent manner. 

Respectfully submitted, 

+kg&+. 

Elizabeth A. Spencer 
Finance Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 
City of Highland Park, Illinois 

We have audited the basic financial statements and the combining and individual fund financial 
statements of the City of Highland Park, Illinois, as of and for the year ended April 30,2004, as 
listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the City of Highland Park, Illinois' management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the fmancial position of the City of Highland Park, Illinois, as of April 30, 2004, and 
the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, 
in our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of each of the individual funds of the City of 
Highland Park, Illinois, as of April 30,2004, and the results of operations of such funds and cash 
flows of individual proprietary funds for the year then ended. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole and on the combining and individual fund financial statements. The financial 
information listed as schedules in the accompanying table of contents is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements and the 
combining and individual fund fmancial statements of the City of Highland Park, Illinois. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic, 
combining and individual fund financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements and each of the combining and 
individual fund statements taken as a whole. 



The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the other required supplementary information 
listed in the table of contents is not a required part of the basic financial statements and the 
combining and individual fund financial statements but is supplementary information required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, 
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement 
and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information 
and express no opinion on it. 

The introductory and statistical information listed in the table of contents was not audited by us 
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon. 

Aurora, Illinois 
September 10,2004 



Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Highland Park (City), we offer readers of the City's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the 
fiscal year ended December 31,2004. We encourage readers to consider the information 
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter 
of transmittal, which can be found on pages iv-vii of this report. As this is the City's first year 
to report in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 
34, comparative financial data has not been provided. Such comparatives will be added in the 
Fiscal Year 2005 report. 

Financial Highlights 

The assets of the Citv exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal vear bv 
2 

$86.6 million (net assets). Of t h ~ s  amount, $16.8 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used 
to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

The government's total net assets increased by $1,070,404 during the 2004 fiscal year. 
Business-type activities resulted in a $1,605,073 increase, while net assets of governmental 
activities decreased by $534,669. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $20.5 million, an increase of $5.5 million in comparison with the 
prior year. It is important to note that this increase is due primarily to the sale of land 
which resulted in one-time revenue of $3,876,013. $17.5 million, representing 85% of the 
total, is available for spending at the government's discretion (unreseruedfund balance). 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was 
$11,751,196, or 39% of total general fund revenues, exceeding the City's policy of 25-33%. 
With the one-time land sale proceeds excluded, the City's fund balance was 26% of general 
fund revenues. 

The City's total bonded debt increased by $4.3 million (14%) during the current fiscal year. 
The key factor in this increase was the issuance of $9 million in general obligation bonds for 
various capital improvements. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the 
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to 
the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements. The gozlernment-ruidefinancial statements are designed 
to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a 
private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. The statement of activities presents 
information showing how the government's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal 
year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 



change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cashflows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods 
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a sigmficant portion of their costs through 
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include 
general government, public safety, public works, economic and physical development, transit, 
commissions and interest costs. The business-type activities of the City include a parking 
system, water utility, and operations of the Highland Park Country Club. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the 
primary government), but also a legally separate library for which the City is financially 
accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the 
financial information presented for the primary government. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14-16 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmentalfunds. Governmentalfinds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, 
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements 
focus on near-term inflows and outflows ofspendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be usefuI in evaluating a 
government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmentalfinds 
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and 
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental finds and 
governmental activities. 

The City maintains ten individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, street and bridge fund, debt 
service fund, and the 2002 general obligation bonds capital projects fund, all of which are 
considered to be major funds. Data from the other six governmental funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation labeled nonmajor governmental finds. Individual fund data for 
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the combining statements and 
schedules provided on pages 78-85 in this report. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. Budgetary 
comparisons have been provided to demonstrate compliance with the budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-22 of this report. 



Propiefayfunds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its 
Parking, Water, and Country Club operations. Internal service funds are an accounting device 
used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City 
uses internal service funds to account for its equipment maintenance and replacement, as well 
as insurance activities. Because both of these services predominantly benefit governmental 
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the Parking, Water, and Country Club operations, all of which are considered 
to be major funds of the City. Conversely, both internal service funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund 
data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining and individualfund 
statements and sclwdules on pages 89-93 in this report. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-27 of this report. 

Fiduciayfunds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of 
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide 
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's 
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary 
funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-29 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 30-60 of this report. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, t h~s  
report also presents certain required supplemenfa y information. Budgetary comparisons for the 
general fund and street and bridge fund are provided, as well as information concerning the 
City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 61-70 of this report. 

The combining statements and schedules are presented immediately following the required 
supplementary information. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be 
found on pages 71-97 of this report 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $86.6 million at the close 
of the most recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets (78%) is its investment in capital assets - land, 
buildings, machinery, and equipment - less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is 
still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; thus, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt 



must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City's net assets (3%) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining $16.8 million balance of 
unrestricted net assets (19% of total) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations 
to citizens and creditors. 

City of Highland Park's Net Assets 
April 3 4  2004 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

Current and Other Assets 
Capital Assets 
Total Assets 

Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding 28,321,644 10,093,770 38,415,414 
Other Liabilities 12,516,969 757,047 13,274,Ul6 
Total Liabilities 40,838,613 10,850,817 51,689,430 

Net Assets: 

Capital Assets, net of Debt 
Restricted 
Unreskicted 
Total Net Assets 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City reports positive balances in all three categories of 
net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and 
business-type activities. The City has adopted a philosophy of funding capital improvements 
to a large extent on a pay-as-you-go basis, and retires debt obligations quickly, resulting in the 
positive net asset calculations. 

The City's net assets increased by $1,070,404 during the current fiscal year. A breakdown of the 
change in net assets follows: 

Water Utility $1,103,275 
Parking System (179,790) 
Country Club 681,588 
Governmental Activities (534,669) 

City of Highland Park's Changes in Net Assets 

Revenues 
Program Revenues 
Charges for Services 
Operating Grants 
Capital Grants 

General Revenues 
Property Taxes 
Sales Taxes 
Other Taxes 

Other 
TOTAL REVENUES 

Governmental BusineskType 
Activities Activities Total 



City of Highland Park's Changes in Net Assets (continued) 

Expenses 
General Government 
Public Safety 
Public Works 

Economic/Physical Development 
Transit 
Commissions 
Interest 
Parking 
Water 
Country Club 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

Increase in net assets before transfers 
Transfers 
lnaease in Net Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

BusinessType 
Activities Total 

6,841,255 
18,632,313 
7,489,204 

5,889,721 
1,148,215 
1,450,664 

676,833 
927,189 

5,285,414 
2,540,970 

50,881,778 

1,070,404 
0 

1,070,404 

Property tax revenue increased by $23,293 (less than 1%) over the prior year. Although 
the City is a home-rule municipality and not subject to property tax limitations, the 
property tax levy has increased by an average of 1.1% per year over the past ten years. 

Sales tax revenue increased by $2,024,169 (20%) over the prior year due to an increase in 
the home rule sales tax rate effective January 1,2003. The increased sales tax revenue is 
dedicated to capital improvements and debt service associated with the City's five-year 
capital improvement plan. 

In addition to the residents of Highland Park, the City's water utility provides water to 
four neighboring jurisdictions by intergovernmental agreement. Outside water sales 
account for approximately 45% of the total water sales. 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 

Transfi Other 
3% 5% General Govt 

Fublic Safety 
44% 

Public Safety expenses 
(police and fire) account for 
the greatest percent of 
governmental activities with 
44%, followed by public 
works, general government, 
and economic/physical 
development. 



Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

Amounts in Millions 

Grants I 
Charges for Services 

Other Taxes 

Utility Taxes 

Sales Taxes $12.0 

Property Taxes $9.9 1 ] 

Sales taxes account for the greatest proportion of funding for governmental activities, followed 
by property taxes and charges for services. Growth in expenses has been closely monitored for 
four consecutive years, with operating departments mandated to contain non-personnel related 
costs. However, the City has continued an  aggressive capital improvement plan, investing $3.6 
million annually in street, sewer and ravine improvements from governmental revenues. The 
City is constructing a new Police Headquarters and, with the Park District, is jointly funding 
construction of a Recreation Center adjacent to the Highland Park Country Club. 

Business-Type Activities 

Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $1.6 million, offsetting a reduction in 
net assets from governmental activities. As noted previously, business-type activities are 
intended to be self sufficient - charges for services should be sufficient to cover all costs 
associated with the operation. The following graph shows a comparison of Fiscal Year 2004 
revenues and expenses of each business-type activity: 

Parking Water Country Club 



Net assets of the parking fund decreased by $(179,790), due primarily to depreciation 
expense. Management is considering whether parking fees should be adjusted to recover 
depredation expense or the fund should be reclassified as a governmental activity. 

The water utility fund net assets increased by $1.1 million. Net assets were also increased 
by a prior period adjustment to correct depreciation calculations made in previous years. 

Net assets of the country club fund increased by $681,588 due in large part by a reduction in 
operating expenses compared to the prior year. 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City utilizes fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in 
assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, unreservedfund balance serves as a 
useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal 
year. 

As of April 30,2004, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$20.5 million, an increase of $5.5 million in comparison with the prior year. As noted 
previously, a large portion of this increase is a result of one-time revenues from the sale of land. 
A large portion of the total fund balance ($17.5 million) constitutes unreservedfund balance, 
which is available for spending at the government's discretion. The unreserved fund balance 
includes $7.4 million of unexpended bond proceeds as of the fiscal year end. Reservedfind 
balance totaling $3.0 million is not available for discretionary spending because it has already 
been committed for a variety of purposes, including payment of debt service, long-term loans 
receivable, and public safety expenditures (E-911 Fund). Please refer to page 18 for a detailed 
description and amounts of reserved fund balance. 

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal 
year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $11.75 million. As a measure of the 
general fund's liquidity, it is useful to compare unreserved fund balance to total fund 
expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 37.7% of total general fund expenditures for 
the current fiscal year. 

The fund balance of the City's general fund increased by $3.7 million during fiscal year 2004. 
With the land sale proceeds excluded, the fund balance would have decreased by $(202,179). 
This small decrease in the fund balance was sigxuficantly better than the $2,365,031 reduction 
anticipated in the budget. The forecasted drawdown of fund balance was due primarily to 
increasing personnel costs, including pension and insurance, as well as operating transfers of 
$3,650,000 to fund capital improvements. 

The street and bridge fund has a total fund balance deficit of $(508,917), the second consecutive 
year that the fund has recorded a deficit at year end. Most of the fund balance deficit is due to 
personnel costs exceeding the budget by $484,000. In the Fiscal Year 2005 budget, the City is 
making a one-time transfer to eliminate the fund deficit and has increased many of the fees 
charged in this fund. 



The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $522,876, al l  of which is reserved for the 
payment of debt service. The net decrease in fund balance during the current year was a result 
of the timing of transfers made for debt service payments on behalf of the TIF fund. 

The 2002 general obligation bonds fund has a total fund balance of $7.4 million, all of which is 
reserved for capita1 improvements. The balance represents bond proceeds that will be spent in 
the next fiscal year. 

Nonrnajor govemmental funds combine for a total fund balance of $1.3 million at year end. 

Proprietayfunds. The City's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of 
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Net assets of the parking system totaled $4.5 million at April 30,2004. Net assets of the water 
utility fund amounted to $20.5 million. Net assets of the country club operation amounted to 
$9.7 million. The total growth in net assets for all proprietary funds was $1.6 million. Other 
factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of 
the City's business-type activities. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The General Fund budget was not amended during fiscal year 2004. Actual revenues exceeded 
the budget by $2.3 million, primarily in the pennit and sales tax categories. Total general fund 
expenditures were $460,000 under budget. A non-budgeted sale of capital assets contributed an 
additional $3,876,000 to the balance of the fund. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type 
activities as of April 30,2004, amounts to $67.2 nullion, net of accumulated depreciation and 
outstanding related debt. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, other 
improvements, machinery and equipment, streets, bridges, sanitary and storm sewers, and 
water production and distribution systems. The net increase in the City's investment in capital 
assets for the current fiscal year was $5.7 million, made up almost entirely by a 9% increase for 
govemmental activities. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

Construction was completed on the Central Business District parking garage at a cost of 
$5.3 million. The two-level parking structure added an additional 148 parking spaces. 

Reconstruction of the Ori parking lot adjacent to the theatre on Central Avenue, which 
provided an additional 38 parking spaces, improved storm drainage, and a new lighting 
system, at a total cost of $600,000. 

Water system improvements totaling $1.2 million, including improvements on Ridge 
Road and Beech Street. 

Widening and reconstruction of Central Avenue, from Green Bay Road to Hickory. A 
center turn lane was added, storm sewer mains were repaired, overhead utility lines 
were relocated underground, new streetlights were installed, and new sidewalks were 
constructed. Total cost of $1.3 million. 

Infrastructure improvements totaled $2.5 million, including storm sewer improvements 
on Sherwood Road, Cave11 Avenue, Briar Lane, Trillium Lane, and Partridge Lane. A 
major electrical service upgrade was completed in the Central Business District. 



City of Highland Park's Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in note 5 on pages 41-42 of this 
report. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total general obligation 
bonded debt outstanding of $35,055,000. Of this amount, $24,940,000 comprises debt to be paid 
by the debt service fund from general governmental revenues. The remainder of the City's 
debt will be paid from revenue of business-type activities. 

City of Highland Park's Outstanding Debt 

The City's total bonded debt increased by $4,279,365 (13%) during the current fiscal year. The 
key factor in this increase was a $9 million general obligation bond issue to fund various capital 
improvements. The City's general obligations bonds maintain a "Aaa" rating from Moody's 
Investors Service. 

General Obligation Bonds 

Under the 1970 Illinois Constitution, there is no legal debt limit for home rule municipalities 
except as set by the General Assembly. If the City were subject to such a limitation, 
outstanding indebtedness could not exceed 8.625% of equalized assessed valuation. Currently, 
the City's direct bonded debt of $35.055 million represents 2.00% of the City's equalized 
assessed valuation. 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in note 7 of this report. 

Total 

Total Business-type activities 

2004 2004 2003 

Governmental activities 

2003 2004 2003 

$35,055,000 510,115,WO $30,775,635 $11,15O,WO $24,910,000 $19,625,635 



Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The City has a long-standing heritage as one of the prestigous communities along 
Chicagoland's "north shore" of Lake Michigan. The economic outlook remains very strong as 
the Citv's stable tax base increased bv 9.0% this vast fiscal vear. With more than 90% of the tax ~~ ~ , 
base consisting of residential property, property tax revenue derived is exceedingly stable. 
State revenues, including income and use taxes, have been affected by the general downturn in 
the economy. ~ u n i c i ~ a l  sales tax revenue increased during the year due primarily to an 
increase in the home rule sales tax rate. Adjusted sales tax figures show a 2.4% increase in sales 
for the first six months of 2004 compared to the prior year. Other economic factors impacting 
the City's budget are as follows: 

The unemployment rate for the City is currently 3.3%, down from 3.5% in 2003. This 
rate compares favorably when compared to the 5.2% rate for Lake County and 6.1% rate 
for the State of Illinois. 

The total value of building permits in the City for fiscal year 2004 was $127 million, 
nearly double the $69 million recorded in fiscal year 2003. In 2004,105 residential 
building permits were issued, compared to 72 for the prior year. 

The per capita income of the City's labor force was $55,331 according to the latest 
census, which placed the City among the nation's wealthiest communities with 
populations of 25,000 or more. 

The Fiscal Year 2005 budget includes a modest 2.4% increase in the property tax levy. Building 
permit revenues are expected to increase due to continuing construction activity. Sales tax 
revenue is expected to remain stable. Vehicle sticker fees were increased from $35 to $40 to 
provide additional operating revenue to the street and bridge fund. An increase in water rates 
went into effect on May 1,2004. Commuter parking lot fees will remain unchanged. As part of 
the development of the Fiscal Year 2005 budget, the City conducted a comprehensive review of 
charges for services. Several fees were adjusted to reflect the costs incurred by the City to 
provide the particular service. 

Budgeted expenditures include increases for salary adjustments, estimated at 3.5%. Pension 
cost increases are projected for all three plans. The City is undergoing a comprehensive study 
of its health insurance plans in an effort to reduce the startling increases in health insurance 
costs the past few years. Expenditures for commodities and other contractual services have 
been reduced in an effort to offset these increases. However, City operating departments have 
been required to reduce non-personnel costs by a cumulative of 2.0% for Fiscal Years 2002-2005. 
As a resuIt, year-end budgetary savings have been reduced as department budgets became 
leaner and discretionary items were removed from the budget. 

The fiscal year 2005 budget projects a $1.4 million decrease in unreserved fund balance of the 
general fund. However, appropriations include transfers of $2.7 million to fund capital 
improvements. The City plans to eliminate all fund deficits reported at April 30,2004, during 
the 2005 fiscal year. 

As noted previously, water rates were adjusted effective May 1,2004. The rate charged to 
Highland Park residential customers increased by 2.7%, while the rate charged outside 
municipal customers increased by 3.0%. The rate increase was necessary to ensure the financial 
stability of the water utility enterprise fund. It was the first water rate adjustment in three 
years. Customers continue to enjoy one of the lowest water rates in the area. 



Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all 
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information may be 
addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, City of Highland Park, 1707 St. Johns Avenue, 
Highland Park, Illinois 60035-2922. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

April 30,2004 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Investments 
Receivables (net, where applicable, 

of allowances for uncollectibles) 
Property taxes 
Motor fuel tax allotments 
Intergovernmental 
Loans 
Accrued interest 
Accounts 

Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 
Due tolfrom other funds 
Due from fiduciary funds 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets being deprec~ated, 

net of accumulated depreciation 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Claims payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Deferred revenues 
Refundable deposits 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Investment in capital assets, 
net of related debt 

Restricted for 
Debt service 
Public facilities 
Working cash 
Public safety 
Streets 
Culture and recreation 

Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

Component 
Primary Government Unit 

Governmental Business-Type Hisbland Park 
Activities Activities Total Public Library 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 14-  



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLWOIS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended Apnl30,2004 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
Governmental activities 

General government 
Public safety 
Fublic works 
Economic and physical development 
Transit 
Commissions 
Interest 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Parking system 
Water 
Country club 

Total business-type activities 

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

COMPONENT UNIT 
Highland Park Public Library 

Program Revenues 
Charges Operating Capital 

Expenses for Services Grants Grants 



Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Assets 
Carnoanent 

General revenues 
Taxes 

Property 
Replacement 
Home rule sales 
Sales 
Utility 
Franchise 
Real estate transfer 
Income 
Other 

Investment income 
Miscellaneous 
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 

Transfers 

Total 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, MAY I 

Prior period adjustment 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1, RESTATED 

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30 

Primary Government unit 
Governmental Business-Tvoe Hiehland Park . . - 

Activities Activities Total Public Libra~y 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
- 1 6 -  
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

April 30, 2004 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the 
statement of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are 
not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the governmental funds 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are 
not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 

Unamortized discount on bonds is shown as a liability on the 
statement of net assets 

Accrued interest on long-term liabilities is shown as a liability 
on the statement of net assets 

Net pension obligation for the fire and police pension funds 
is shown as a liability on the statement of net assets 

The compensated absences liability for the City is not 
as a liability on the statement of net assets 

The net assets of the internal service fund are 
included in the govemmental activities in the 
statement of net assets 

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 19- 
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITLES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - 
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement 
activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures, however, they are 
capitalized and depreciated in the statement of activities 

Sales of capital assets are reported as a proceed in govemmental funds 
but as a gain (loss) from sale on the statement of activities 

The issuance of long-term debt is reported as an other financing source in 
govemmental funds but as an increase of principal outstanding in the 
statement of activities 

The issuance costs on long-term debt is reported as an other financing source in 
govemmental funds but as a decrease of principal outstanding in the 
statement of activities 

The repayment of the principal portion long-term debt is reported as an 
expenditure when due in govemmental fnnds but as a reduction of principal 
outstanding in the statement of activities 

The increase in accrued interest payable is shown as a reduction of 
expense on the statement of activities 

Some expenses in the statement of activities (e.g. depreciation) do not 
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds 

The change in compensated absences payable is shown as an expense 
on the statement of activities 

The increase in net pension obligation is reported as an increase in expense 
on the statement of activities 

The change in net assets of certain activities of internal service funds is 
in governmental funds 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

April 30,2004 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash 
Investments 
Receivables 

Billed 
Unbilled 

Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 
Due from other funds 

Total current assets 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Land 
Parking facilities and equipment 
Water and sewer plant and equipment 
Country club facilities and equipment 
Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets 

Total assets 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Claims payable 
Due to other funds 
Refundable deposits 
Interest payable 
Deferred revenue 
Bonds payable - current 

Total current liabilities 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Bond premium (discount) 
General obligation bands payable 

Total long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

Business-Type Activities 
Motor Highland Governmental 

Vehicle Park Activities 
Parking Country Internal 
System Water Club Totals Service 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

ST.4TEMENT OF REVEhWES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Business-Type Activities 
Motor Highland Governmental 

Vehicle Park Activities 
Parking Country Internal 
System Water Club Totals Sewice 

OPERATING REVEhTJES 
Charges for services 

Water sales 
XVater permit fees 

Parking lot collections 
Parking violations 
Golf fees 
Charges for goods and services 
Premium reimbursements 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Cost of goods sold 
Materials and supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Small tools and equipment 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING DTCOME BEFORE 
DEPRECIATION 

Depreciation 172,863 1,119,028 288,347 1,580,238 695,661 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (185,608) 1,903,896 873,885 2,592,173 (585,353) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES ( E E N S E S )  
Investment income 5,818 11,140 16,958 2,228 
Inter& expense and fiscal charges (420,664) (92,297) (5 12,951) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 5,818 (409,524) (92,297) (496,003) 2,228 

(nus statenlent is continued on the following page.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF REVENCTES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (Continued) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

3XT INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 

TRAY-SERS IN (OUT) 
Transfers (out) 

Total trsnsfers in (out) 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

SET ASSETS, hlAY 1 

Prior period adjustment 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1, RESTATED 

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30 

Business-T)pe Activities 
Motor Highland 

Vehicle 
Parking 

Pa& 
Country 

Governmental 
Activities 
Internal 

System Water Club Totals Service 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTNITLES 
Receipts from customers and users 
Receipts from interfund sen,ices 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Net cash from operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Interfund transfers 

Vet cash from noncapital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments an  bonds 
Interest paid 

Net cash from capital and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest received 
Sale of investments 
Purchase of investnlents 
Purchase of capital assets 

Net cash frominvesting activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
CASH AYD CASH EQUIVALEKTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, MAY 1 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30 

Business-Type Activities 
Motor Highland Governmental 

Vehicle Park Activities 
Parking Country Internal 

(This statement is continued on the following page.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 
TO NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating incom (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(lass) to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid items 
Inventory 
Due fmmather funds 
Accrued expenses 
Accounts payable 
Refundable deposits 
Unamortized bond discount 
Unamortized bond premium 
Accrued payroll 
Due to other funds 

Business-Type Activities 
Motor Hiehland Governmental - 

Vehicle Park Activities 
Parking Country Internal 
System Water Club Total Service 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES s o $  547,933 
P 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

April 30, 2004 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

U.S. government and agency obligations 
Mutual funds 
Insurance contracts 

Receivables 
Accounts 
Accrued interest 

Prepaid items 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to others 
Due to other funds 
Deposits payable 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR 
PENSION BENEFITS 

Pension 
Trust Agency 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions - employer 

Taxes 
Contributions - plan members 
Contributions - other 

Total contributions 

Investment income 
Net appreciation (depreciation) in 

fair value of investments 
Interest earned on investments 

Total investment income 
Less investment expenses 

Net investment income 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Pension and refunds 
Miscellaneous 

Total deductions 

NET INCREASE 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR 
PENSION BENEFITS 
May 1 

April 30 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

April 30,2004 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Highland Park, Illinois (the City) have been 
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are 
described below. 

a. Reporting Entity 

The City was incorporated in 1869. The City is a municipal corporation governed by 
an elected seven-member council. The City operates under a Council-Manager form 
of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: 
public safety (police and fire); highways and streets; health, social and cultural 
services; water and sanitation; public improvements; planning and zoning; and 
general administrative services. As required by generally accepted accounting 
principles, these financial statements present the City (the primary government) and 
its component units. 

The City's financial statements include pension trust funds: 

Police Pension Employees Retirement System 

The City's police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees Retirement 
System (PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these employees and is 
governed by a five-member pension board. Two members appointed by the City's 
Mayor, one pension beneficiary elected by the membership, and two police 
employees elected by the membership constitute the pension board. The City and 
PPERS participants are obligated to fund all PPERS costs based upon actuarial 
valuations. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and the City 
is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of 
contribution levels. Although it possesses many of the characteristics of a legally 
separate government, the PPERS is reported as if it were part of the primary 
government because its sole purpose is to finance and administer the pensions of the 
City's police employees and because of the fiduciary nature of such activities. The 
PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund. The PPERS does not issue a separate 
annual financial report. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

a. Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Firefighters' Pension Employees Retirement System 

The City's firefighters participate in the Firefighters' Pension Employees Retirement 
System (FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of these employees and is 
governed by a nine-member pension board. The City's Mayor, Treasurer, Clerk, 
Attorney, and Fire Chief, one pension beneficiary elected by the membership, and 
three fire employees elected by the membership constitute the pension board. The 
City and FPERS participants are obligated to fund all FPERS costs based upon 
actuarial valuations. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and 
the City is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination 
of contribution levels. Although it possesses many of the characteristics of a legally 
separate government, the FPERS is reported as if it were part of the primary 
government because its sole purpose is to finance and administer the pensions of the 
City's firefighters and because of the fiduciarynature of such activities. The FPERS 
is reported as a pension trust fund. The FPERS does not issue a separate annual 
financial report. 

The Highland Park Public Library 

This component unit has an appointed nine member board and provides services to 
residents, generally within the geographic boundaries of the City. This component 
unit is included within the reporting entity because the City approves the budget and 
annual tax levy. In addition, bond issuance authorizations are approved by the City 
and the legal liability for the general obligation portion of the Library's debt remains 
with the City. 

A copy of the Library's Annual Financial Report may be obtained by written request 
to Highland Park Public Library, 494 Laurel Avenue, Highland Park, Illinois 60035. 

b. Fund Accounting 

The City uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations 
and cash flows. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to 
aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government 
functions or activities. 

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 

Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary, and 
fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate "fund types." 



crry OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's general 
activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special 
revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of capital assets (capital projects 
funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The general 
fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for 
in some other fund. The permanent fund is used to account for resources legally 
restricted to the extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used for 
governmental purposes. 

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the 
private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound 
financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided 
either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies 
primarily within the City (internal service funds). 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, 
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government. 
When these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, either a 
pension trust fund is used. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets 
that the City holds on behalf of others as their agent. 

c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the 
City. The effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these 
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, 
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function, segment or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses 
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program 
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment 
and 2) grants and standard revenues that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary 
funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government- 
wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major 
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Corporate Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts 
for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to 
be accounted for in another fund. 

The Street and Bridge Fund is used to account for the activity that provides 
street lighting, street cleaning, snow removal, maintenance, and certain capital 
improvements to streets and bridges. 

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the payment of interest and 
principal on general and special obligation debt other than that payable from 
special assessments and debt issued for and serviced by a governmental 
enterprise. 

The 2002 General Obligation Bonds Fund accounts for all resources used for 
the acquisition andlor construction of capital equipment and facilities by the 
City except those financed by the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Motor Vehicle Parking System Fund accounts for the acquisition, 
operation and maintenance of parking lots and other facilities owned by the 
city. These activities are entirely or predominantly self-supported by user 
charges. 

The Water fund accounts for the water facilities and services owned and 
provided by the City to its residents. The activities are entirely or 
predominantly self-supported by user charges. 

The Highland Park Country Club fund is used to account for the activities of 
the golf course and county club owned by the City. 

d. Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues and additions are recorded when 
earned and expenses and deductions are recorded when a liability is incurred. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e., 
intended to finance). Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as 
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Operating 
revenueslexpenses include all revenueslexpenses directly related to providing 
enterprise fund services. Incidental revenueslexpenses are reported as non-operating. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

d. Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and 
current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements 
of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and 
decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

All proprietary funds and pension tmst funds are accounted for on a flow of 
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and 
all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance 
sheet. Proprietary fund-type fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into 
contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type 
operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) 
in net total assets. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types, and 
agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and 
available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined 
and "available" means collectible within the current period. The City recognizes 
property taxes when they become both measurable and available in the year intended 
to finance. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. 
Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when 
due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payments 
to be made early in the following year. 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, 
interest revenue, and charges for services. Sales taxes owed to the state at year end 
on behalf of the City also are recognized as revenue. Fines and permits revenues are 
not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in 
cash. 

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary f h d  types and pension 
trust funds. Under this method, revenuesladditions are recorded when earned and 
expenses/deductions are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 

The City reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues 
arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" 
or "earned" criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also 
arise when resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim to them, as 
when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. 
In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the 
City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed 
from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

e. Cash and Investments 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City's proprietary fund types 
consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or 
less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Investments 

Investments with a maturity of one year or less when purchased and non-negotiable 
certificates of deposit are stated at amortized cost. Investments with a maturity 
greater than one year when purchased are reported at fair value. Investments in the 
pension trust funds are stated at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market 
prices at April 30 for debt securities, equity securities and mutual funds, and contract 
values for insurance contracts. 

f. Short-Term lnterhnd ReceivablesPayables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual 
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are 
classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet. 
Short-term interfund loans, if any, are classified as "interfund receivables/payables." 

g. Advances to Other Funds 

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables, if any, are reported as 
advances and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account which indicates 
that they do not constitute expendable available financial resources and therefore are 
not available for appropriation. 

h. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as 
assets greater than $5,000 with an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 

Such assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated 
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value or service 
of capacity of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTWG POLICIES (Continued) 

h. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets Years 

Buildings 
Public domain infrastructure 
System in£rastmcture 
Vehicles 
Mobile equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Computer equipment 

i. Compensated Absences 

The City's policy for vacation pay states that vacation time is earned each pay 
period. Vacation credits carry over into future years up to a maximum of 30 days. 
Any accumulated time in excess of 30 days is lost. Unused sick time may be used 
toward time off and/or converted to pre-tax dollars and deposited into the Section 
125 Flexible Spending Program. Vested or accumulated sick and vacation leave 
including related social security and medicare of proprietary funds and governmental 
activities is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as benefits accrue to 
employees. 

j. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the h d  
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or 
proprietary fund type financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs 
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face 
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on 
debt issuances are reported as other fmancing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

k. Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund 
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted 
by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance 
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. In the govemment- 
wide financial statements, restricted net assets are legally restricted by outside parties 
for a specific purpose. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is the book value 
of capital assets less any long-term debt outstanding that was issued to construct or 
acquire the capital assets. 

1. Interfund Transactions 

Transactions for interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, 
expenditures, or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for 
expenditureslexpenses initially made ffom it that are properly applicable to another 
fund are recorded as expenditureslexpenses in the reimbursing fund and as 
reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 

All other interfimd transactions, except interfund services transactions and 
reimbursements, are reported as transfers. 

o. GASB Pronouncements 

The City has elected, under the provisions of GASB Statement 20, titled Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities 
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, to apply all applicable GASB 
pronouncements and all FASB Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles 
Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) issued on or 
before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements. 

2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Deficit Fund Balances of Individual Funds 

The following funds had a deficit in fund balance as of the date of this report: 

Deficit 
Fund Balance 

Street and Bridge 
Street Improvements 
Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds 1981 
Insurance Fund 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 

The deficit in the Street and Bridge Fund was projected in the fiscal year 2005 budget and 
will be eliminated with a transfer from the Working Cash Fund. The City intends to 
eliminate the deficit in the Street Improvements Fund by April 30,2005. The deficit in the 
Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds 1981 Fund will be eliminated by TIF 
property tax revenues in fiscal year 2005. The deficit in the Insurance Fund will be 
eliminated with a transfer from the General Fund in fiscal year 2005. 

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except 
the pension trust funds. Each fund type's portion of this pool is displayed on the combined 
balance sheet as "cash and investments." In addition, investments are separately held by 
several of the City's funds. 

Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes authorize the City to make depositslinvest in 
insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury 
and U.S. Agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds with 
portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States or agreements to 
repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term commercial paper 
rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, and 
Illinois Funds. Pension funds may also invest in certain non-U.S. obligations, Illinois 
municipal corporations tax anticipation warrants, veteran's loans, obligations of the State 
of Illinois and its political subdivisions, and Illinois insurance company general and 
separate accounts, mutual funds, and equity securities. 

Illinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the State of Illinois, Office of the 
Treasurer, which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment 
purposes. Illinois Funds is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but 
does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 
1940. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at Illinois Fund's share price, which is the 
price for which the investment could be sold. 

Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET) is a non-for-profit investment trust formed 
pursuant to the Illinois Municipal Code and managed by a Board of Trustees elected from 
the participating members. M E T  is not registered with the SEC as an investment 
company. Investments in IMET are valued at IMET's share price, which is the price for 
which the investment could be sold. 
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3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

a. Deposits 

At year end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits totaled $1,908,917 and the 
bank balances totaled $1,823,382. The carrying amount of the Component Unit's 
deposits totaled $635,459 and the bank balances totaled $735,021. 

Primary Component 
Government Unit 

Category 1 
Deposits covered by federal depository insurance, 

or by collateral held by the City, or its agent, in the 
City's name. $ 1,823,385 $ 735,021 

Category 2 
Deposits covered by collateral held by the pledging 

financial institution's trust department, or by its 
agents, in the City's name. 

Category 3 
Deposits covered by collateral held by the pledging 
financial institution, or its trust department, 
or its agent but not in the City's name, and 
deposits which are uninsured and uncollateralized. - 

TOTAL DEPOSITS $ 1,823,385 $ 735,021 
P 

b. Investments 

The City's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of custodial 
credit risk assumed by the entity at year end. Category 1 includes investments that 
are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the City or its agent 
in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for 
which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the 
City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which 
the securities are held by the counterparty in the City's name, or held by any third 
party but not in the City's name. 
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3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

b. Investments (Continued) 

Fair ValueICarrying Amount 
Category 

1 2 3 Totals 

Primarv Government 

U.S. Government obligations $ 22,140,862 $ - $ - S 22,140,862 
U S .  Government agencies 10,215,706 - 10,215,706 

$32,356,568 $ - $ - 32,356,568 - 
*Negotiable CDs 49,766 
* Mutual Funds 23,672,631 
* Life insurance conlracts and separate accounts 1,450,110 
* Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund 1,996,585 
* Illinois Funds 12,505,199 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS $72,030,859 

Com~onent Unit 

* Mutual Funds $ 416,091 
7 

* (Not subject to risk caiegorization) 

The pension trust funds own approximately 88 percent of the investments in 
Category 1. 

4. RECEIVABLES - TAXES 

Property taxes for 2003 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1,2003 on property values 
assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied in December of the subsequent fiscal year 
(by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County and issued on 
May 1,2004 and August 1,2004 and are payable in two installments, on June 1,2004 and 
September 1,2004. The County collects such taxes and remits them periodically. The 
allowance for uncollectible taxes has been stated at 0.5 percent of the tax levy to reflect 
actual collection experience. The 2003 taxes are intended to finance the 2005 fiscal year 
and are not considered available for current operations and are, therefore, shown as 
deferred revenue. The 2004 tax levy has not been recorded as a receivable at April 30, 
2004, as the tax attached as a lien on property as of January 1,2004, however, the tax will 
not be levied until December 2004 and, accordingly, is not measurable at April 30,2004. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

a. Primary Government 

Beginning 
Balance, Ending 
Restated Increases Decreases Balance 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTNlTIES 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land $11,427,706 $ 106,078 $ 3,037,994 $ 8,495,790 
Construction in progress 904,909 904,909 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 11,427,706 1,010,987 3,037,994 9,400,699 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and land improvements 52,867,700 5,331,287 - 58,198,987 
Machinery and equipment 9,484,533 1,053,844 88,614 10,449,763 
Total capital assets being depreciated 62,352,233 6,385,131 88,614 68,648,750 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Buildings and land improvements 10,884,896 1,131,725 - 12,016,621 
Machinery and equipment 5,703,567 892,581 88,614 6,507,534 
Total accumulated depreciation 16,588,463 2,024,306 88,614 18,524,155 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 45,763,770 4,360,825 - 50,124,595 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $57,191,476 $ 5,371,812 $ 3,037,994 $59,525,294 - 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Economic development 
Commissions 

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

Beginning 
Balance, Ending 
Restated Increases Decreases Balance 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTNITIES 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land $ 4,981,323 $ - $ - $ 4,981,323 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,981,323 - 4,981,323 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Building 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and equipment 4,606,735 68,957 - 4,675,692 
Total capital assets being depreciated 57,652,286 1,906,332 - 59,558,618 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

a. Primary Government (Continued) 

Beginning 
Balance, Ending 
Restated Increases Decreases Balance 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (Continued) 
Less accumulated depreciation for 
Building $ 7,906,101 $ 620,361 $ - $ 8,526,462 
Infrastructure 9,786,893 746,459 - 10,533,352 
Machinely and equipment 
Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 37,411,686 326,094 - 37,737,780 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $42,393,009 $ 326,094 $ - $42,719,103 

b. Component Unit 

Beginning 
Balances Ending 
Restated Increases Decreases Balance 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTMTIES 
Capital assets not being depreciated - .  
&d $ 500,000 $ - $ - $ 500,000 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 500,000 500,000 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Land inmrovements 
Buildings and improvements 
Machinery 
Total capital assets being depreciated - 4,18 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Land improvements 23,046 1,733 24,779 
Buildings and improvements 1,444,974 75,572 - 1,520,546 
Machinery 177,303 22,695 199,998 
Total accumulated depreciation 1,645,323 100,000 - 1,745,323 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,541,209 182,814 - 2,724,023 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 3,041,209 $ 182,814 $ - $ 3,224,023 

Depreciation expense was charged to functionsiprograms of the governmental activities as 
follows: 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
Culture and recreation 
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6. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; illnesses of employees; 
and natural disasters. The City is self-insured for the employees' health and dental claims 
and is involved in a risk management agency for all other insurance. The City had 
established a risk financing fund, Insurance (Fund) for various risks. It is accounted for as 
an internal service fund where assets are set aside for claim settlements. Under this 
program, the Fund provides coverage up to a maximum of $100,000 for each health claim. 

All hnds of the City participate and make payments to the Fund based upon actuarial 
estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current-year claims. Liabilities of the 
Fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been 
incurred but not reported (IBNR). Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of 
inflation, recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of payouts, and 
other economic and societal factors. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during 
the past two fiscal years are as follows: 

CLAIMS PAYABLE, MAY 1 $ 311,843 $ 1,350,767 

Add claims incurred 
Less claims paid 

CLAIMS PAYABLE, APRIL 30 $ 388,111 $ 311,843 

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) 

The City participates in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA). IRMA 
is an organization of municipalities and special districts in northeastern Illinois that have 
formed an association under the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperations Statute to pool 
their risk management needs. The agency administers a mix of self-insurance and 
commercial insurance coverages; propertylcasualty and workers' compensation claim 
administrationllitigation management services; unemployment claim administration; 
extensive risk management/loss control consulting and training programs; and a risk 
information system and financial reporting service for its members. 

The City's payments to IRMA are displayed on the financial statements as 
expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. Each member assumes the first $2,500 of 
each occurrence, and IRMA has a mix of self-insurance and commercial insurance at 
various amounts above that level. 
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6. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) (Continued) 

Each member appoints one delegate, along with an alternate delegate, to represent the 
member on the Board of Directors. The City does not exercise any control over the 
activities of IRMA beyond its representation on the Board of Directors. 

Initial contributions are determined each year based on the individual member's eligible 
revenue as defmed in the bylaws of IRMA and experience modification factors based on 
past member loss experience. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of 
lRMA attributable to any membership year during which they were a member. 
Supplemental contributions may be required to fund these deficits. 

The City purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of the coverages provided 
by the Fund. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT 

a. General Obligation Bonds 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and 
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued 
for both general government and proprietary activities. These bonds therefore are 
reported in the proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary 
revenues. 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of 
the City. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows: 

Debt Service General Obligation Bonds 

Fund Debt Balances Balances 
Issue Retired by May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30 Current 

$4,975,000, 1996 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual installments 
of $120,000 to $1.225.000 
through2004; interestat 3.40% Debt 
to 4.25% Service $ 465,000 $ - $ 460,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 

$3,450,000, 1997 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual installments 
of $125,000 to $575,000 through Debt 
201 1; interest at 4.4% to 4.6% Service 1,700,000 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

a. General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

Debt Service General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

Fund Debt Balances Balances 
Issue Retired by May I Issuances Retirements April 30 Current 

$3,030,000, 1998 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of $50,000 to 
$800,000 through 
December 30,2008, interest at 
4.000% to 4.125% 

$3,000,000, 1999 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due at maturity on 
December 3 1, 2003, interest at 
LIBOR plus .3% times 65.00% 

$6,285,000,2001 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
due at maturity on 
December 31,2013, interest at 
4.70% to 4.75% 

$8,500,000, 2002 General 
Obligation Bonds, due at 
maturity on December 3 1,2023, 
interest at 3.00% to 4.00% 

$9,000,000,2003 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of $615,000 to 
$900,000 through 2016; interest 
at 1.6% to 3.6% 

TOTAL 

Debt 
Service $ 1,480,000 S - $ 255,000 $ 1,225,000 $ 255,000 

Debt 
Service 1,200,635 

Debt 
Service 6,280,000 410,000 5,870,000 970,000 

Debt 
Service 8,500,000 - 1,090,000 7,410,000 605,000 

Debt 
Service - 9,000,000 - 9,000,000 615,000 

$19,625,635 $ 9,000,000 $ 3,685,635 $24,940,000 $ 2,680,000 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

a. General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

Water Fund General Obligation Bonds 

Fund Debt Balances Balances 
Issue Retired by May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30 Current 

S1,420,000, 1997 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of $45,000 to 
$1 10,000 through 2018; interest Water 
at 4.40% to 4.75% Fund $ 1,235,000 S - $ 50,000 $ 1,185,000 $ 55,000 

$1,10O,WO, 1998 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of S25,000 to 
$100,000, through 
December 30,2021; interest at Water 
4.00% to 4.25% Fund 1,010,000 

% 1,000,000, I999 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of $55,000 to 
$105,000 through 2013; interest Water 
at 4.80% to 5.00% Fund 

S1,600,000,2000 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of $35,000 to 
$125,000 through 2020; interest Water 
at 4.875% to 5.375% Fund 1,510,000 

$3,715,000, 2001 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, 
due at maturity on 
December 30,2013, interest at Water 
4.70% to 4.75% Fund 3,010,000 750,000 2,260,000 795,000 

$1,500,000,2002 General 
Obligation Bonds, due at 
maturity on December 31,2023, Water 
interest at 3.00% to 4.00% Fund 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 40,000 

TOTAL $ 9,245,000 S - $ 935,000 $ 8,310,000 $ 1,020,000 - - 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

a. General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

Country Club Fund General Obligation Bonds 

Fund Debt Balances Balances 
Issue Retired by May l Issuances Retirements April 30 Current 

$170,000, 1998 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of $5,000 to 
$25,000 through December 30, 
2013; interest at 4.10% to Country 
4.125% Club Fund $ 160,000 $ 

51,000,000, 1999 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of $20,000 to 
$195,000, through 2013; Country 
interest at 4.80% to 5.00% Club Fund 890,000 

$900,000,2000 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of 515,000 to 
$95,000 through 201 1 ; interest Country 
at 4.875% to 5.375% Club Fund 855,000 35,000 820,000 40,000 

TOTAL $ 1,905,000 $ - $ 100,000 $ 1,805,000 $ 110,000 

Component Unit 

Fund Debt Balances Balances 
Issue Retired by May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30 Current 

$700,000, 1998 Installment 
Note due in monthly 
installments of $7,292 through - 
April 19,2006; interest at Public 
4.40% Library $ 187,278 $ - $ 117,617 $ 69,661 $ 69,661 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

b. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 

Fiscal General Obligation Enterprise Total 
Year Principal 

Ending Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total and Interest 

TOTAL S24,940,000 $ 5,352,967 $30,292,967 $10,115,000 $3,456,394 $13,571,394 93,864,361 - 
c. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

During the fiscal year the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the 
governmental activities: 

Balances Balances 
May l Additions Reductions April 30 Current 

Primarv Government 

Unamortized discount $ (29,939) $ - $ - S (29,939) S 
Compensated absences 1,232,985 896,322 2,129,307 3 19,396 
Net pension obligation 189,515 1,092,761 1,282,276 
General obligation bonds 19,625,635 9,000,000 3,685,635 24,940,000 2,680,000 

TOTAL PRIMARY 
GOVERNMENT $ 21,018,196 $ 10,989,083 $ 3,685,635 $ 28,321,644 $ 2,999,396 

Comoonent Unit 

Compensated absences $ 69,304 $ 4,883 $ - S 74,187 $ 11,128 
Installment contract 69,661 69,661 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

d. Legal Debt Margin 

The City is a home rule municipality. 

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the 1970 Illinois Constitution governs computation of the 
legal debt margin. 

"The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum 
approval of debt to be incurred by home rule municipalities, payable from ad 
valorem property tax receipts, only in excess of the following percentages of 
the assessed value of its taxable property ...( 2) if its population is more than 
25,000 and less than 500,000 an aggregate of one percent: ... indebtedness 
which is outstanding on the effective date (July 1, 1971) of this constitution or 
which is thereafter approved by referendum ... shall not be included in the 
foregoing percentage amounts." 

To date the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities. 

e. Port Clinton Tax Increment Financing Project 

On May 11, 1981, the City adopted a Downtown Redevelopment Plan and Project 
(Redevelopment Plan) and adopted tax increment financing pursuant to the Real 
Property Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act of the State of Illinois (Act) 
as a means of inducing developer participation in the Redevelopment Plan. 

Since inception of the project, the City has received approximately $20,420,000 of 
incremental property taxes. These revenues have been recorded in the Tax 
Increment Financing G.O. Bonds 1981 Capital Projects Fund. In addition to the 
above, $2,347,345 (representing the rental payments mentioned above and 
$2,047,345 in sales tax receipts) has been transferred to this 1981 Fund ffom the 
General Corporate Fund. Prior to fiscal 1988, the City had recorded the $2,347,345 
as operating transfers ii-om the General Corporate Fund. During fiscal 1988, the City 
reversed the operating transfers and established an interfund liability in accordance - 

with its intent to reimburse the General Comorate Fund for these advances. During " 
fiscal 2000, the Tax Increment Financing G.O. Bonds 1981 Capital Projects Fund 
reimbursed $175,000 to the General Corporate Fund ($1,739,558 has been 
reimbursed since inception). The net amount ($471,211) is reflected as an interfund 
payable to the 2002 General Obligation Bonds Fund in the accompanying financial 
statements. 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

e. Port Clinton Tax Increment Financing Project (Continued) 

In December 1999, the City adopted an ordinance approving the second amendment 
to the Disbict. This amendment reduced the boundary of the District, thereby 
releasing $36,000,000 in equalized assessed valuations to the other taxing districts. 
In January 2000, the City adopted an ordinance approving the third amendment to 
the redevelopment plan. This amendment extended the life of the District to the year 
2004 and added additional property. The District is scheduled to expire on 
December 3 1,2004. 

f. Noncommitment Debt 

Special Assessment Bonds Payable 

As of April 30, 2004, the City had outstanding $130,000 of special assessment bonds 
representing the nonpublic benefit portion of the originally issued special assessment 
debt, which is to be repaid solely by collections from property owners. Accordingly, 
the City is not obligated in any manner for the portion of special assessments to be 
collected from property owners; as such, this portion is not recorded in the amounts 
of the City. The City's duties are limited to acting as an agent for the property 
owners in collecting the assessments and forwarding the collections to the 
bondholders. Repayment activity related to the nonpublic benefit portion of the 
special assessment debt is recorded in an agency fund. 

8. INTERFUND ACCOUNTS 

Due FromITo Other Funds 

Fund Due From Due To 

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL 
General 

Street and Bridge 
Debt Service 
2002 General Obligation Bonds 
Motor Vehicle Parking System 
Water 
Highland Park Country Club 
Insurance 
Police Pension 
Fire Pension 

Total General 

Debt Service 
General 53,978 
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8. INTERFUND ACCOUNTS (Continued) 

Due F r o d T o  Other Funds (Continued) 

Fund Due From Due To 

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL (Continued) 
Street and Bridge 

Motor Fuel Tax 
General 

Total Street and Bridge 

2002 General Obligation Bonds 
General 
Tax lncrement Financing General Obligation Bonds 
Street Improvements 

Total 2002 General Obligation Bonds 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL 
Motor Fuel Tax 

Street and Bridge 

Emergency 9 1 1 System 
lnsurance 87,910 

Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds 1981 
2002 General Obligation Bonds 471,211 

Street Improvements 
2002 General Obligation Bonds 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
Motor Vehicle Parking System 

General 
Water 

Total Motor Vehicle Parking System 

Highland Park Country Club 
General 

Water 
Motor Vehicle Parking System 
General 

Total Water 

INTERNAL SERVICE 
Insurance 

General 
Emergency 91 1 System 

Total Internal Service 
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8. NTERFUND ACCOUNTS (Continued) 

Due FromITo Other Funds (Continued) 

Fund Due From Due To 

FDUCIARY 
Police Pension 

General 
Fire Pension 

General 
Total Internal Service 

Total 

The purpose of the significant Due FrodTo  Other Funds is as follows: 

The $1,497,715 due to the General Fund from the Street and Bridge Fund is for 
interfund operations. Repayment is expected within one year. 

The $1,000,000 due to the Capital Projects Fund from the General Fund is for 
interfund operations. Repayment is expected within one year. 

The $530,376 due to the General Fund from the Motor Vehicle Parking System Fund 
is for interfund operations. Repayment is expected within one year. 

The $1,452,542 due to the General Fund from the Water Fund is for interfund 
operations. Repayment is expected within one year. 

The $168,526 due to the General Fund from the Highland Park Country Club is for 
interfund operations. Repayment is expected within one year. 

Transfers 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

MAJOR 
General 

Street and Bridge $ - $ 500,000 
Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds 550,560 
Street Improvements 2,650,000 
Debt Service 500,000 
Water 

Total General 
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8. INTERFUND ACCOUNTS (Continued) 

Transfers (Continued) 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

MAJOR (Continued) 
Street and Bridge 

Motor Fuel Tax 
General 

Total Street and Bridge 

Debt Service 
General 
Highland Park County Club 

Total Debt Service 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL 
Motor Fuel Tax 

Street and Bridge 

Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds 
General 550,560 

Street Department 
General 2,650,000 

BUSWESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
Water 

General 

Highland Park Country Club 
Debt Service 

TOTAL $ 5,560,657 $ 5,560,657 

The purpose of the significant transfers is as follows: 

$500,000 transfer to the Street and Bridge Fund from the General Fund is to fund 
operations. 

$550,560 transfer to the General Fund from the Tax Increment Financing General 
Obligation Bonds is to fund the repayment of an interfund loan. 

$2,650,000 transfer to the Street Improvements Fund from the General Fund is to 
fund operations. 
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8. INTERFUND ACCOUNTS (Continued) 

Transfers (Continued) 

$500,000 transfer to the Debt Service Fund from the General Fund is to fund 
principal and interest and fiscal charges related to debt service. 

$391,097 transfer to the General Fund from the Water Fund is to fund operations. 

$869,000 transfer to the Street and Bridge Fund from the Motor Fuel Tax Fund is to 
h d  street improvement projects. 

$100,000 transfer to the Debt Service Fund from the Highland Park Country Club is 
to fund principal and interest and fiscal charges related to the Country Club. 

9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

a. Litigation 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits 
is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City's attorney the resolution of 
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the fmancial condition of the 
City. 

b. Grants 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and 
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed 
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the 
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by 
the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

c. Municipal Infrastructure Maintenance Fee 

Effective January 1, 1998, the City imposed a municipal telecommunications 
infrastructure maintenance fee (IMF) on persons in the business of transmitting, 
supplying, or furnishing telecommunications and all associated services (e.g., 
telecommunications retailers) in Illinois for the "use of public right-of-ways". The 
fee was authorized by state statute (35 ILCS 635). In March 2001, a wireless 
telecommunications provider brought action against an Illinois government 
challenging the constitutionality of the municipal telecommunications infrastructure 
maintenance fee. The Illinois Supreme Court (Court) found the IMF to be 
unconstitutional as applied to wireless carriers. The Court's decision held upon 
appeal. The municipal IMF fee was eliminated effective December 31,2002. 
Potential damages to the City under this case precedent could aggregate the total of 
amounts remitted to the City for IMF by all carriers during the period from 
January 1, 1998 through December 3 1,2002. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 

c. Municipal Infrastructure Maintenance Fee (Continued) 

The City has not estimated a liability under potential IMF lawsuits for amounts paid 
under protest during this time. 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 

The City contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent-multiple-employer public employee retirement system; 
the Police Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan; and, the Firefighters' 
Pension Plan which is also a single-employer pension plan. The benefits, benefit levels, 
employee contributions and employer contributions for all three plans are governed by 
Illinois Compiled Statutes and can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly. 

The Police and Firefighters' pension plans issue separate reports on the pension plans. 
IMRF issues a publicly available report that includes financial statements and 
supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not for individual employers. That 
report can be obtained from IMRF, 221 1 York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523. 

a. Plan Descriptions 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 

All employees (other than those covered by the Police or Firefighters' plans) hired in 
positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled 
in IMRF as participating members. Pension benefits vest after eight years of service. 
Participating members who retire at or after age 60 with eight years of credited 
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an 
amount equal to 1 213% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited 
service up to 15 years, and 2.00% for each year thereafter. IMRF also provides 
death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are 
established by state statute. Participating members are required to contribute 4.50% 
of their annual salary to IMRF. The City is required to contribute the remaining 
amounts necessary to fund the IMRF as specified by statute. The employer 
contribution for the year ended December 31,2003 was 5.86% of covered payroll. 

Police Pension Plan 

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan. Although this is a 
single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer 
contribution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 513-1) and 
may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a 
pension trust fund. At April 30,2003, the Police Pension Plan membership consisted 
oE 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued) 

Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 48 
Terminated employees entitIed to benefits but not 
yet receiving them 1 

Current employees 
Vested 58 
Nonvested - 

TOTAL 

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability 
benefits. Covered employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years 
of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to one- 
half of the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year 
prior to the last day, whichever is greater. The annual benefit shall be increased by 
2.50% of such salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years, 
to a maximum of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least eight years but less 
than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced 
benefit. The monthly benefit of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of 
service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first 
anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, 
by 3.00% of the original pension and 3.00% compounded annually thereafter. 

Employees are required by ILCS to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the 
Police Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 
years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without 
accumulated interest. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts 
necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. 
Effective July 1, 1993, the City has until the year 2033 to fully h n d  the past service 
cost for the Police Pension Plan. For the year ended April 30,2003, the City's 
contribution was 11.27% of covered payroll. 

Firefighters' Pension Plan 

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Firefighters' Pension Plan. Although this is 
a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer 
conhibution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 514-1) and 
may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a 
pension trust fund. At April 30,2003, the Firefighters' Pension Plan membership 
consisted of: 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued) 

Firefighters' Pension Plan (Continued) 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 34 
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not 
yet receiving them 

Current employees 
Vested 53 
Nonvested 

TOTAL 87 

The Firefighters' Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and 
disability benefits. Covered employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or 
more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit 
of one-half of the monthly salary attached to the rank held in the fire service at the 
date of retirement. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such salary for 
each additional year of service over 20 years of service through 30 years of service, 
to a maximum of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least ten years but less 
than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced 
retirement benefit. The monthly pension of a covered employee who retired with 20 
or more years of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased annually, following 
the first anniversary date of retirement and paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 
by 3.00% of the original pension and 3.00% compounded annually thereafter. 

Covered employees are required to contribute 8.455% of their base salary to the 
Firefighters' Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less 
than 20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded 
without accumulated interest. The City is required to finance the plan as actuarially 
determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective July 1, 1993, the City has until the year 
2033 to fully find the past services costs for the Firefighters' Pension Plan. For the 
year ended April 30,2003, the City's contribution was 26.32% of covered payroll. 

b. Significant Investments 

There are no significant investments (other than U.S. Government guaranteed 
obligations) in any one organization that represent 5.00% or more of plan net assets 
for either the Police or the Firefighters' Pension Plans. Information for the IMRF is 
not available. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

c. Annual Pension Costs 

Employer contributions have been determined as follows: 

Illinois 
Municipal Police Firefighters' 
Retirement Pension Pension 

Actuarial valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Asset valuation method 

Amortization method 

Amortization period 

December 31, April 30, April 30, 
2001 2002 2002 

Entry-age Entry-age Entry-age 
Normal Normal Normal 

5 Year 5 Year 5 Year 
Smoothed Smoothed Smoothed 
Market Market Market 

Level Level Level 
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of 

Payroll Payroll Payroll 

10 Years, 30 Years, 30 Years, 
Closed Closed Closed 

Significant actuarial assumptions 
a) Rate of return on 7.50% 8.00% 8.00% 

present and future assets Compounded Compounded Compounded 
Annually Annually Annually 

b) Projected salary increase - 4.00% 6.00% 6.00% 
Attributable to inflation Compounded Compounded Compounded 

Annually Annually Annually 

c) Additional projected .40 to 11.60% Not Available Not Available 
salary increases - 
senioritylmerit 

Employer annual pension costs (AF'C), actual contributions and the net pension 
obligation (asset) (NPO) are as follows. The NPO (asset) is the cumulative 
difference between the APC and the contributions actually made. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

c. Annual Pension Costs (Continued) 

Illinois 
Calendar Municipal Fiscal Police Firefighters' 

Year Retirement Year Pension Pension 

Annual pension cost 2001 $ 1,021,646 2002 $ 376,640 $ 890,938 
2002 600,600 2003 1,141,952 1,246,923 
2003 689,166 2004 1,436,843 1,231,641 

Actual contribution 2001 $ 1,021,646 2002 $ 678,818 $ 721,224 
2002 600,600 2003 337,684 771,936 
2003 689,166 2004 408,430 953,777 

Percentage of APC 2001 100.00% 2002 180.23% 80.95% 
contributed 2002 100.00 2003 29.57 61.91 

2003 100.00 2004 28.43 77.44 

NPO (asset) 2001 $ - 2002 $ (1,017,784) $ (285,472) 
2002 - 2003 (213,517) 189,515 
2003 - 2004 814,897 467,379 

The net pension obligation (asset) at April 30,2003, has been calculated as follows: 

Police Firefighters' 
Pension Pension 

Annual required contributions $ 1,436,843 $ 1,231,768 
Interest on net pension obligation (17,08 1) 15,162 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 17,081 (15,289) 

Annual pension cost 
Contributions made 

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation (asset) 1,028,414 277,864 
Net pension obligation (asset) beginning of year (213,517) 189,515 

NET PENSION OBLIGATION (ASSET) 
END OF YEAR $ 814,897 $ 467,379 

1 1. HIGHLAND PARK COUNTRY CLUB FUND 

The Highland Park Country Club Fund was created in fiscal 1993 pursuant to City 
ordinance and classified as an enterprise fund. The Highland Park Country Club Fund is 
utilized for the purpose of recording the activity of the Highland Park Country Club (the 
Club) which was purchased by the City on May 6, 1993. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

1 1. HIGHLAND PARK COUNTRY CLUB FUND (Continued) 

As of June 1, 1998, the Club is managed by American Golf Corporation, pursuant to a 
consulting and management agreement between the City and American Golf Corporation 
dated May 28, 1998. The term of the lease is for a period of five years. American is paid a 
fixed monthly management fee ($7,500) plus an ince~ltive management fee. 

The City financed its purchase of the Club through the issuance of $8,200,000 of general 
obligation bonds. As the debt service on the bonds is currently being met through a 
property tax levy, the liability for the bonds is not recorded in the Club. It is being retired 
by the Debt Service Fund. 

12. MAJOR CUSTOMERS 

The Village of Deerfield and the Village of Lincolnshire purchase water from the City's 
available supply. During fiscal 2004, these purchases amounted to $1,410,708, or 20.8%, 
and $1,020,060 or 15.1%, respectively, of total operating revenues in the Water Fund. 

13. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

The City restated beginning net assets in the Motor Vehicle Parlnng System Fund 
($2,134,466), the Water Fund ($7,463,925), the Highland Park Country Club ($2,013,532), 
and the Equipment Maintenance and Replacement Fund ($53,116) to properly record fixed 
assets at their historical cost. The City also restated General Fund balance by $517,476, 
the Street and Bridge Fund by $71,013, and the Emergency 91 1 System Fund by $1,611 to 
correct errors in prior year payroll accruals. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 2,780,152 $ 2,772,222 
Illinois state replacement taxes 190,000 212,981 
Licenses 143,512 158,054 
Permits 1,532,160 2,224,864 
Charges for current services 898,280 1,167,875 
Municipal sales tax 1 1,500,000 12,038,527 
Fines and forfeitures 304,914 358,690 
Utility tax 3,757,678 3,469,014 
Cable television franchise tax 360,500 333,133 
Real estate transfer tax 1,887,185 2,174,270 
Intergovernmental 290,084 327,792 
Illinois state income tax 1,982,508 1,823,033 
PACE R.T.A. fare reimbursement 870,000 920,879 
Franchise tax 307,000 503,542 
Other taxes 55,000 572,140 
Reimbursements 179,971 383,390 
Investment income 286,384 135,042 
Miscellaneous 

Other 332,183 401,761 

Total revenues 27,657,511 29,977,209 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 7,452,978 6,308,791 
Public safety 14,773,397 14,763,886 
Economic and physical development 2,824,2 15 3,339,672 
Public works 1,503,630 1,657,957 
Transit 983,395 1,128,989 
Commissions 394,764 271,750 

Total expenditures 27,932,379 27,471,045 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (274,868) 2,506,164 

(This schedule is continued on the following page.) 
- 61 - 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers (out) 

Total other linancing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE TN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1, RESTATED 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 

Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

STREET AND BRIDGE FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
hop* taxes 
Vehicle licenses 
Charges for current services 
Fines and foreitures 
Investment income 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Public works 

Personal s e ~ c e s  
Contractual services 
Material and supplies 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY I 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1, RESTATED 

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
- 6 3 -  



crn OF HIGHLAND PARK. ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 

April 30,2004 

(6) 
Unfunded 

(Overfunded) 
AAL 

(2) (4) (UAAL) 
Actuarial Unfunded As a 

Actuarial (1) Accrued (3) (Overfunded) Percentage 
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (5) of Covered 

Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll 
December 3 1 Assets - Entry Age (1) / @ I  (2) - (1) Payroll (4) It51 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
POLICE PENSION FUND 

April 30,2004 

(6) 
Unfunded 

(Overfunded) 
AAL 

(2) (4) (UAAL) 
Actuarial Unfunded As a 

Actuarial (1) Accrued (3) (Overfunded) Percentage 
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (5) of Covered 

Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll 
April 30 Assets - Entry Age (1)/(2) (2) - (1) Payroll (4) /(5) 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND 

April 30,2004 

(6) 
Unfnnded 

(Overfunded) 
AAL 

(2) (4) (UAAL) 
Actuarial Unfunded As a 

Actuarial (1) Accmed (3) (Overfunded) Percentage 
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (5) of Covered 

Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll 
April 30 Assets 0 Pa roll (4) 1 (5) 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 

April 30,2004 

Actuarial Annual 
Valuation Pension 

Date Employer Cost Percentage 
December 31 Contributions ( M c )  Contributed 

1998 $ 741,007 $ 741,007 100.00% 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
- 67 - 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
POLICE PENSION FUND 

April 30,2004 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date Employer 
April 30 Contributions 

1999 $ 629,234 

2000 735,964 

2001 678,818 

2002 337,684 

2003 408,430 

2004 817,169 

NIA - Information for this year is not yet available. 

Annual 
Pension 

Cost 
( N C )  

$ 417,061 

297,802 

376,640 

1,141,952 

1,436,843 

NIA 

Percentage 
Contributed 

150.87% 

247.13% 

180.23% 

29.57% 

28.43% 

N/A 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND 

April 30,2004 

Actuarial Annual 
Valuation Pension 

Date Employer Cost Percentage 
April 30 Contributions ( N C )  Contributed 

1999 $ 603,930 $ 623,103 96.92% 

NIA - Information for this year is not yet available. 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

April 30,2004 

BUDGETS 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted 
(at the fund level) for the general corporate, special revenue, debt service (on a total generic fund 
basis), capital projects, enterprise, and internal service funds. All annual appropriations lapse at 
fiscal year end. 

All departments of the City submit requests for appropriation to the City's Director of Finance so 
that a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund and includes information on the 
past year, current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year. 

The proposed budget is presented to the governing body for review. The governing body holds 
public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change appropriations, but may not change the 
form of the budget. 

The manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; 
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the 
governing body. 

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. During the year 
no supplementary appropriations were necessary. 

The following fund had an excess of actual expenditureslexpenses (exclusive of depreciation and 
amortization) over budget for the fiscal year: 

Fund Excess 

Street and Bridge $ 293,038 



CITY OF HlGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF DETALED EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
City Council 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total City Council 

Administration 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total administration 

Human resources 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total human resources 

Communications 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total communications 

City Clerk 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total City Clerk 

Youth 
Operations 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

Total youth operations 302,809 311,353 

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 
GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued) 
Senior 

Operations 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total senior operations 

Youth and Senior Services 
Facilities 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total facilities 

Total youth and senior services 

Legal department 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total legal department 

Finance administration and accounting 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Administrative charges 

Total finance administration and accounting 

Facilities 
Personal s e ~ c e s  
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total facilities 

Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 
GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued) 
Insurance 

Contractual services 
Professional services 
Membership dues 

Total insurance 

Other charges 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Capital outlay 

Total other charges 

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
Police department 

Operations 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total operations 

Facilities 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total facilities 

Total police department 

Fire department 
Operations 

Personal services 
Contractual services 

Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 
GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued) 
Fire department (Continued) 

Operations (Continued) 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total operations 

Facilities 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total facilities 

Total fire deparbnent 

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 

ECONOMIC AND PHYSICAL DEVELOPMENT 
Community development department 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total community development department 2,177,095 2,288,795 

Economic development 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Revenue sharing 

Total economic development 

TOTAL ECONOMIC AND PHYSICAL DEVELOPMENT 

PUBLIC WORKS 
Public works administration 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total public works administration 

(This schedule is continued on the following page.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF DETAILED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 
GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

PUBLIC WORKS (Continued) 
Facilities 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total facilities 

Engineering 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total engineering 

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 

TRANSIT 
Operations 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total operations 

Facilities 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total facilities 

TOTAL TRANSIT 

COMMISSIONS 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

TOTAL COMMISSIONS 

Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXF'ENDITUReS 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 

Final 
Budget Actual 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

2002 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Original 
and Final 
Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Bond issuance costs 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Bonds issued 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
- 77 - 

- 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Motor Fuel Tax - underwrites the cost of some major street and bridge improvements by a 
transfer to street and bridge. Allotments of gasoline taxes collected by the state are the primary 
revenue. 

Emergency 911 System - to pay for the City's "911" emergency telephone service. 

Working Cash - provides advances to other funds that require cash immediately but are 
temporarily short on working capital. 

Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds 1981 - to account for the Initial Phase 
acquisition, relocation, rehabilitation, and reconstruction related to the Downtown 
~edevelo~rnent Plan and Project. 

Street Improvements - to account for costs incurred to alleviate storm drainage problems, 
finance street improvements, and provide other infrastructure improvements. 

Working Capital Public Facility and Improvement - the assets in this fund are to be utilized 
for the acquisition andlor construction of public facilities. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Final 
Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Motor fuel tax allotments 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
None 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

EMERGENCY 91 1 SYSTEM FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Final 
Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety 

Personal services 
Contractual services 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 

Prior period adjustment 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1, RESTATED 

FUND BALANCE. APRIL 30 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

WORKING CASH FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

REVENUES 
None 

EXPENDITURES 
None 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 

Final 
Budget Actual 

(See independent audtor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 1981 FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Final 
Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 1,188,247 1,178,079 

EXPENDITURES 
None . - 

Total expenditures - - 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,188,247 1,178,079 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers (out) (1,751,196) (550,560) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,751,196) (550,560) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (562,949) 627,5 19 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), MAY 1 (1,091,580) 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), APNL 30 $ (464,06 1) 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Final 
Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE M FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), MAY I 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

WORKING CAPITAL PUBLIC FACILITY AND IMPROVEMENT FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

REVENUES 
Investment income 
Reimbursements 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Final 
Budget Actual 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 

FUND BALANCE, AF'W 30 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Motor Vehicle Parking System Fund, Water Fund, and the Highland Park Country Club 
Fund - to account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of Government-owned 
parking, water facilities and services, golf course and other Government-owned facilities which 
are entirely or predominantly self-supported by user charges. The operation of these funds are 
accounted for in such a manner as to show a profit or loss similar to comparable private 
enterprises. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

MOTOR VEHICLE PARKING SYSTEM FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Find 
Budget Actual 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Parking collections 
Parking violations 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Small tools and equipment 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
DEPRECIATION 

Depreciation 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Investment income 

Total nonoperating revenues 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1 

Prior period adjustment 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1, RESTATED 

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
AhD CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -BUDGET AND ACTC'AL 

T.IrATER FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Water sales 
Water permit fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 
Contmctual services 
Materials and supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Small tools and equipment 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME BEFORE 
DEPRECIATION 

Depreciation 

OPERATliiG INCOME 

iiONOPERATING ReVENUES P E N S E S )  
Bonds issued 
Inveshnent income 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 

TR4hXFERS (OLT) 
Transfers (out) 

Total tmnsfers (out) 

CHANGE EV NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1 

Prior period adjushnent 

hET ASSETS, MAY 1, RESTATED 

NFT ASSETS. APRIL 30 

Final 
Budget Actual 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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C m  OF HIGHLA\?) PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
A,\D CHANGES IN xET ASSETS -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

HIGHLAND PARK COUNTRY CLUB FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Golf fees 
Charges for goods and senzices 
Other 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Contactual services 
Cost of goods sold 
Small tools and equipment 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION 

Depreciation 

OPERATING INCOME 

NONOPERATING REVENL-ES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 

TRANSFERS IN (OLT) 
Transfers (out) 

Total operating transfers in (out) 

CHANGE N N E T  ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1 

Prior period adjustment 

YET ASSETS, MAY 1, RESTATED 

KET ASSETS, APRIL 30 

Final 
Budget Actual 

(See independent auditor's report) 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Equipment Maintenance and Replacement Fund - to finance and account for services andlor 
commodities furnished by a designated program to other programs within the City. 

Insurance Fund - to account for the payment of premiums on insurance policies and employee 
benefit related claims. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

April 30,2004 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 

Total current assets 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries 
Claims payable 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

Equipment 
Maintenance 

and 
Replacement Insurance Totals 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK. ILLINOIS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Equipment 
Maintenance 

and 
Replacement Insurance Totals 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Premium reimbursements 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 2,467,834 4,838,292 7,306,126 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Small tools and equipment 

Total operating expenses 2,110,278 5,085,540 7,195,818 

OPERATING INCOME BEFORE 
DEPRECIATION 

Depreciation 695,661 695,661 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (338,105) (247,248) (585,353) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 2,036 192 2,228 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,036 192 2,228 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (336,069) (247,056) (583,125) 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1 3,873,902 3,873,902 

Rior period adjustment 53,116 53,116 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1, RESTATED 3,927,018 3,927,018 

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING STATEMEYT OF CASH FLOWS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers and users 
Receipts from interfund services 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Net cash from operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANClh-G ACTIVITIES 
Interfund transfers 

Net cash from noncapital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AXD 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
None 

Net cash from capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investment income 
Purchase of investments 
Purchase ofcapital assets 

Net cash h m  investing activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IK 
CASH AKD CASH EQUIVALEKTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEXTS, MAY 1 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATIKG INCOME 
(LOSS) TO NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Due h m  other funds 
Accrued expenses 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Due to ather funds 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Equipment 
Maintenance 

and 
Replacement Insurance Total 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDLIE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -BUDGET AND ACTLTAL 
EQUIPMENT MATNTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT F L m  

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Final 
Budget Actual 

OPEMrING REVEh'UES 
Charges for services 
Mscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

OPFRATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 
Repairs and maintenance 
Small tools and equipment 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATWG INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
DEPRECIAnON 

Depreciation 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 

Total mmperating revenues (expenses) 

NET INCO!vE (LOSS) BEFORE 
TRANSFERS 

TRfA-SFERS lS (OUT) 
Transfers (out) 

Total transfers in (out) 

CHAYGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS. MAY 1 

Prior period adjustment 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1, RESTATED 

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
- 92 - 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

INSUFL4NCE FUND 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Final 
Budget Actual 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for current services 
Premium reimbursements 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Materials and supplies 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, MAY 1 

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30 

(See independent auditor's report.) 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Trust and Agency Funds consist of resources received &om the non-Government sources and 
held by the City as trustee or agent to be expended or invested in accordance with the conditions 
of the trust or in its agency capacity. 

Pension Trust 

Police and Firefighter's Pension - provides for payment of retirement benefits. Funding comes 
from property taxes, City contributions, and employee contributions. 

Agency 

General Deposit - consists of security deposits made by contractors performing services for the 
City. 

Special Assessment - to account for the collection of special assessments fiom property owners. 
The collections are used to pay off special assessment debt, for which the City is not obligated. 

Housing Trust - to provide financial resources to address the needs of individuals and families 
of low and moderate income households who live or work in the City by promoting, preserving 
and producing long-term affordable housing, providing housing-related services and providing 
support for not-for-profit organizations that support the fund's objectives. Distribution of funds 
from the Housing Trust Fund shall be in the form of grants, loans or other funding mechanisms. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF PLAN NET ASSETS 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

April 30,2004 

Police Firefighters' 
Pension Pension Totals 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments, at fair value 
U.S. government obligations 14,088,624 14,454,437 28,543,061 
Mutual funds 9,732,589 7,077,975 16,810,564 
Insurance contracts - 1,450,110 1,450,110 

Total investments 23,821,213 22,982,522 46,803,735 

Prepaid items 16,773 - 16,773 

Receivables 
Accrued interest 

Total receivables 226,231 196,029 422,260 

Total assets 25,417,191 23,686,699 49,103,890 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other funds 
Accrued expenses 

Total liabilities 23,357 22,575 18,015 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR 
PENSION BENEFITS $ 25,393,834 $ 23,664,124 $ 49,057,958 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Police Firefighters' 
Pension Pension Totals 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions - employer 

Property taxes 
Replacement taxes 

Contributions - plan members 
Contributions - other 

Total contributions 

Investment income 
Net appreciation (depreciation) in 

fair value of investments 
Investment income 

Interest earned on investments 

Total investment income 
Less investment expense 

Net investment income 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Pensions and refunds 
Miscellaneous 

Contractual professional services 

Total deductions 

NET INCREASE 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR 
PENSION BENEFITS 
May 1 

April 30 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 95 - 



COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Balances Balances 
May 1 Additions Deductions April 30 

ALL FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Due J?om other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Due to others 
Deposits payable 
Deferred revenue 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

GENERAL DEPOSIT FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Due fiom other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Deposits payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

(This statement is continued on the following page.) 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 
AGENCY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

Balances Balances 
May 1 Additions Deductions April 3 0 

SPECJAL ASSESSMENT FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue 
Due to others 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

HOUSING TRUST FUND 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL. ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Due to others 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

See accompanyhgnotes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE REVENUES 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

PROGRAM REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Operating grants 
Capital grants 

GENERAL REVENUES 
Taxes 
Investment income 
Gain on sale of capital assets 

TOTAL REVENUES 

NOTE: The City implemented GASB S-34 for the fiscal year ended April 30,2004 

Data Source 

City Records 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 

For the Year Ended April 30,2004 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Economic and physical development 
Transit 
Commissions 
Interest 

Total governmental activities 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
Water 
Parking 
Country club 

Total business-type activities 

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

NOTE: The City implemented GASB S-34 for the fiscal year ended April 30,2004 

Data Source 

City Records 
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CITY OF HIGHLAW PARK, ILLINOIS 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES .4\D COLLECTIONS 

Last Ten Levy Years 

Current Taxes Delinquent 
Collected Taxes Percent 

Tax Tax Fiscal Percent Collected of Total 
Levy Levy as Year of Levy incurrent Total Collections 
Year Abated (2) Collected Amount Collected Year Collections to Tax Levy 

Kotes: 
(1) Lake County does not furnish information relating to delinquent taxes collected for the applicable levy year. 

Amounts shown in this column are collections in the year indicated of delinquent taxes applicable to prior years' tax 
levies. 

(2) Tax levy as abated represents total assessments extended by the City tax rate plus levies on the special service areas 
and the tax increment f m c i n g  area. 

(3) The 2003 tax levy has not been collected as of the report date. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, nLrivoIs 

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

Last Ten Levy Years 

Ratio of Total 
Assessed 

Valuation to 
Actual Value- Estimated 

Fiscal Tax levy Real Property Actal Value of 
Year Year Real Estate Ralroads Total Only (1) Real Property 

(1) Based on comparable 33% assessment ratios -real properly only. 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO EQUALIZED ASSESSED 
VALUATION AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Ratio of 
General 

@) ( c )  Bonded Debt 
(a) Equalized General to Equalized General 

Fiscal Estimated Assessed Bonded Assessed Bonded Debt 
Year Population Valuation Debt Valuation Per Capita 

Notes: 
(1) 1990 census. 
(2) Revised 2000 census 

Data Sources 

(a) U.S. Census Bureau 
@) County Clerk 
(c) City of Highland Park Finance Depa&inent 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, nLrNors  

SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 

April 30,2004 

Under the 1970 Illinois Constitution, there is no legal limit for home rule municipalities except 
as set by the General Assembly. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, nLINoIs  

SCHEDULE OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

April 30,2004 

Percentage City of 
Debt Applicable Highland 

Gross to the City of Park Share 
Governmental unit Debt Highland Park (1) of Debt 

City of Highland Park $ 35,055,000 100.00% $ 35,055,000 

Lake County 
Lake County Forest Preserve District 
North Shore Sanitary District 
Schools 

Elementary 
District No. 106 
District No. 109 
District No. 112 
District No. 113 

College of Lake County 

(1) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subject to taxation in the City of 
Highland Park to valuation of property subject to taxation in overlapping unit. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION 
BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Ratio of 
Total Debt Total Bonded Debt 
Service on General to General 

Fiscal General Governmental Governmental 
Year Principal* Interest* Bonded Debt Expenditures Expenditures 

* Excludes Special Service Area Bonds and in-substance defeasance of general obligation bonds 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

PRINCPAL TAXPAYERS 

April 30, 2004 

(1) 
2003 

Equalized 

(2) Assessed 
Taxpayer BusinessIService Valuation 

Renaissance Place, LLC 
Federal Realty Investment Trust 
American NB Trust of Chicago - 

Americana Apartments 
Target Corporation 
LaSalle Bank 
American Stores Company 
Klairmont Enterprises, Inc. 
Toys R Us - Delaware Inc. 
Dayton Hudson Corporation 
Dominick's 
Michael and Juanita Jordan 

BusinessRetail Center 
BusinessRetail Center 

Real Property 
Retail Store 
Bank 
Businessfietail Center 
Businessfietail Center 
Retail Store 
Retail Store 
Retail Center 
Residence 

Notes: 
(1) Source: Lake County Clerk 

(2) Every effort has been made to seek out and report the largest taxpayers. However, many of 
the taxpayers listed contain multiple parcels and it is possible that some parcels and their 
valuations have been overlooked. The 2003 EAV is the most current available for all 
taxpayers. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(1) (2) (3) (1) (1) 
Fiscal (1) Per Capita School Unemployment Median College 
Year Population Income Enrollment Rate Age Degree 

Notes: 
(1) U.S. Census Bureau. 
(2) Highland Park School Districts. 
(3) Illinois Department of Employment Security 
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CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 

April 30,2004 

Date of incorporation 
Form of government 
Area - square miles 
Miles of streets 

Paved 
Graded 

Total 
Miles of sewers 

Storm 
Sanitary 

Total 
Fire protection 

Number of stations 
Number of employees 

Police protection 
Number of stations 
Number of officers 

Recreation 
Parks - number of acres 
Number of playgrounds 

Education 
Number of public school buildings 
Number of certified teachers 
Number of students registered 

Municipal water system 
Number of customers 
Average daily consumption (gallons) 
Plant capacity (rated) -per day (gallons) 
Miles of water mains (approximate) 
Number of fire hydrants (approximate) 

Number of street lights 
Employees 
Population 

1880 1,154 
1890 2,163 
1900 2,906 
1910 4,209 
1920 6,167 
1930 12.203 

March 11, 1869 
Council-Manager 

12 

Source of information: U.S. Census Bureau and city records. 



CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS 

SCHEDULE OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT PRINCIPAL INSTALLMENT COLLECTIONS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Percent Total 
Current Current of Current Total Delinquent 

Fiscal Installments Installments Installments Installments Installments 
Year Due Paid Paid Paid* Receivable 

* Includes amounts received on current, delinquent, and future installments. 




